
           

The public can join the meeting to provide public comment. Please notify Jessica Vigorito at Jessica.Vigorito@flagstaffaz.gov if you
need any assistance joining the meeting. 

ATTENTION
IN-PERSON AUDIENCES AT COMMISSION MEETINGS HAVE BEEN SUSPENDED UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE

Click here to participate in the online meeting

NOTICE AND AGENDA
 

COMMISSION ON DIVERSITY AWARENESS
Tuesday
June 21, 2022

  VIRTUAL TEAMS MEETING
             1:30 P.M.

           

1. Call to Order   

 

2. Roll Call
  
NOTE: One or more Commission Members may be in attendance telephonically or by
other technological means.
  
DeAnn Wegwert, Chair   
Robert "Dan" Duke
Claire Hardi
Mandy Martinez Gebler
               

Marcela Pino
Jean Toner, Vice Chair
Christine Tucci
   
 

  

 

3. Mission Statement and Land Acknowledgment

 MISSION STATEMENT
  
A commission to foster support, respect, awareness and appreciation of diversity among all
citizens of Flagstaff.
  

LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
  
The Commission on Diversity Awareness humbly acknowledges the ancestral homelands of
this area’s Indigenous nations and original stewards. These lands, still inhabited by Native
descendants, border mountains sacred to Indigenous peoples. We honor them, their
legacies, their traditions, and their continued contributions. We celebrate their past, present,
and future generations who will forever know this place as home.
 

  

 

4. Upcoming Opportunities and Announcement 

The Housing Section is thrilled to share with you the final, print-ready 10-Year Housing
Plan for the City of Flagstaff. To sign up for the Housing Section’s mailing list where
this and other Housing Section news are shared, click here.
Shout out to the amazing range of offerings by Creative Flagstaff in the month of
June! 

  

 

5. Public Comment   

http://Jessica.Vigorito@flagstaffaz.gov
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_Mjk5MzAzNzgtMzIzMi00ZmI1LTgzNTItYTc2YTFlOTE0NDYz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%225da727b9-fb88-48b4-aa07-2a40088a046d%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22ccbd54b4-62cc-437c-9bd5-26070c936813%22%7d
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/4553/Housing-Plan
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/4553/Housing-Plan
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/list.aspx?ListID=655
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.flagstaff.az.gov%2Flist.aspx%3FListID%3D655&data=05%7C01%7CJessica.Vigorito%40flagstaffaz.gov%7C3b4cabf74d49493debea08da4fc1912e%7C5da727b9fb8848b4aa072a40088a046d%7C0%7C0%7C637909990288708837%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=CQjhcVSy7PUquFcdoPV0EqSXPbCnKF6uR6D5PnaXugE%3D&reserved=0
https://www.flagstaff.com/calendar


5. Public Comment

The Commission cannot act upon items presented during the Public Participation portion of
the Agenda. Individual Commission members may ask questions of the public but are
prohibited by the Open Meeting Law from discussion or considering the item among
themselves until the item is officially placed on the Agenda. Each public comment or
presentation will be limited to five (5) minutes.

  

 

6. Approval of Minutes   

 

A. Consideration and Approval of Minutes: Commission on Diversity Awareness Meeting of
May 17, 2022 and Special Meeting June 7, 2022. 

  Approve the minutes of the Commission on Diversity Awareness Meeting of May 17,
2022 and Special Meeting June 7, 2022. 

 

7. Date of Next Meeting - July 19, 2022, time TBD    

 

8. Action Items   

 

A. Transition of the Commission Leadership roles 
  The Commission will discuss the appointment process, timeline, and appointment term

for the anticipated Leadership vacancy.
 

B. CODA Regular Meeting 
  Protocol for exiting the meeting prior to adjourning. 

Review the results of the email survey and discuss and vote on the new CODA
Regular meeting start time, week of the month and day of the week. 
Review current Boards and Commission meeting calendar. 
Discuss transition to a hybrid format. 
Ensure all members are on board for the new meeting information and confirm
commitment to attendance.  

 

9. Reports/Discussion Items   

 

A. Proclamations   

 

i. Updates  
PRIDE Proclamation read at the May 31st Council meeting. 

  

 

B. CODA Social Event  
Discuss social event details 
Provide the Liaison direction for the event. 

  

 

10. Agenda for Future Meeting(s)   

 

A. Future Priorities 

Criminal Justice conversation with Flagstaff Police Department
Conversation with Downtown Business Alliance including literature to distribute
Civil Rights

  

 

https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/994/Boards-Commissions


B. Equitable Restroom Recommendation 
  The item is currently in the Staff Future Agenda Items queue which means it is waiting

for some research and staff work before it moves forward again.
 

C. Municipal Equity Index 
  The item is currently in the Staff Future Agenda Items queue which means it is waiting

for some research and staff work before it moves forward again.
 

D. Renaming of the Peaks Workgroup Update
  Pending follow up from the High School group on when to send the Commission's

recommendation to Council. 
 

E. Proclamations Work Group Update
  Hispanic Heritage Month October. Review draft in the September Regular meeting. 
 

11. Adjourment   

 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF NOTICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Flagstaff City Hall on                      ,
at                a.m./p.m. This notice has been posted on the City's website and can be downloaded at  www.flagstaff.az.gov.

Dated this               day of                                       , 2022.

__________________________________________
Jessica Vigorito, Human Resources Analyst                                          

http://www.flagstaff.az.gov


   
Commission on Diversity Awareness 6. A.        
From: Jessica Foos, Human Resources Analyst

DATE: 06/21/2022

SUBJECT: Consideration and Approval of Minutes: Commission on Diversity Awareness Meeting
of May 17, 2022 and Special Meeting June 7, 2022. 

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the minutes of the Commission on Diversity Awareness Meeting of May 17, 2022 and
Special Meeting June 7, 2022. 

Executive Summary:
Minutes of the Commission meetings of the Commission on Diversity Awareness are a requirement of
Arizona Revised Statutes and, additionally, provide a method of informing the public of discussions
and actions being taken by the Commission. 

Attachments
May 17, 2022 Draft Minutes 
June 7, 2022 Draft Minutes 



DRAFT MINUTES 
COMMISSION ON DIVERSITY AWARENESS
Tuesday
May 17, 2022

  VIRTUAL TEAMS MEETING
             1:30 P.M.

 

               

1. Call to Order
 
  Chair Wegwert called the meeting to order at 1:32 PM.
 

2. Roll Call
  
PRESENT ABSENT
DeAnn Wegwert, Chair Claire Hardi
Marcela Pino  
Dan Duke  
Jean Toner, Vice-Chair   
Christine Tucci  
Mandy Gebler joined at 1:47pm.   

Others in Attendance 

Jessica Vigorito (Staff Liaison)
 

3. Mission Statement and Land Acknowledgment

 MISSION STATEMENT
  
A commission to foster support, respect, awareness and appreciation of diversity among all
citizens of Flagstaff.
  

LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
  
The Commission on Diversity Awareness humbly acknowledges the ancestral homelands of
this area’s Indigenous nations and original stewards. These lands, still inhabited by Native
descendants, border mountains sacred to Indigenous peoples. We honor them, their legacies,
their traditions, and their continued contributions. We celebrate their past, present, and future
generations who will forever know this place as home.
 

 
  The Mission Statement was read by Chair Wegwert and the Land Acknowledgment was read

by Commissioner Pino.
 

4. Upcoming Opportunities and Announcements
 
  Chair Wegwert reminded the group about the purpose of this section.



  Chair Wegwert reminded the group about the purpose of this section.
Chair Wegwert stated that the Asian American and Pacific Islanders Proclamation was
read by the Mayor at the May 3rd Council meeting.
Deputy City Manager Shannon Anderson provided an update on the Alternative
Response Model. See the attachment for a summary of the talking points. 
Staff Liaison shared the Coconino County Stronger as One website.
The Leadership group asked if members are interested in participating in a CODA Social
Event.  Commissioner Pino and Commissioner Duke stated interest for an event and
Chair Wegwert asked to add this to the June agenda.
Commissioner Pino provided updates from the NAU Equity and Inclusion including: 

President Cruz has been doing a lot of work in the equity and inclusion space and
has announced the hiring of a Chief Diversity Officer as a Vice president, reporting
directly to the president starting in fall. There's going to be potentially some
structural changes in hiring of additional support, but overall it seems like there is
continued support at NAU for Diversity, inclusion and justice efforts.
The Roadmap includes diversity, equity, inclusion and justice as a foundational
principle, as well as the support of diverse faculty, staff, and students as one of its
core initiatives. So perhaps we can think about how we tie back in after we have
achieved diversity officer in place for kind of collaboration opportunities next year.

 

5. Public Comment
 
  Felicia Fiedler provided an update on the Library Pride Month activities. 

LGBT book club happening on June 13th at 6:30 and will be virtual and for ages 12
and up.
Pride paint night for adults at creative spirits at 6:30 and will be in person on June
16 and 17.
Clear board game night at Bookman's and that will be at 6:00 o'clock.
Pride right night that will be happening earlier in the month of June possibly on the
7th but will confirm.
Drag story time that will be happening in the morning of pride on June 18th.

 

6. Approval of Minutes
 

A. Consideration and Approval of Minutes   

 
  Commissioner Toner motioned for the March 15, 2022 minutes to be approved as

written.
Commissioner Pino seconded the motion.
Motion approved unanimously.

 

7. Date of Next Meeting - June 21, 2022
 
  No conflicts stated with the date

Time was tentatively TBD but will be at 1:30pm since the Commission lost it's quorum
before they could discuss this item. 

 

8. Action Items
 

A. Working Group for the Indigenous Representation Project at Sawmill Multicultural Art
and Nature County Park

  

 
  Listened to a recap from City Staff Jana Weldon.



  Listened to a recap from City Staff Jana Weldon.
Discussed who will represent the Commission on Diversity Awareness for this working
group.
Commissioner Duke and Commissioner Toner expressed interest in representing CODA.
Jana Weldon stated that she would like to accept both members. Jana asked for both
members contact info from the commission members.

 

B. Proclamations Work Group Update   

 
  Commissioners reviewed the draft Pride Proclamation to be sent to the Mayor’s Office

for consideration. Vice Chair Toner read the draft aloud for the group.
Commissioner Duke suggested replacing “women of color” with “persons of color”
Chair Wegwert motioned for the Pride Proclamation to be approved with amendments.
Commissioner Duke seconded the motion.
Motion approved unanimously.
Commissioners discussed who will be present to accept the Proclamation, virtually or in
person on May 31 st.
Commissioner Toner stated that the President of Northern Arizona Pride Debra Taylor
will be in attendance to accept the Proclamation.
Chair Wegwert and Commissioner Duke, will be present to accept the Proclamation.
Commissioner Toner stated the next Proclamation is October Hispanic Heritage Month

 

9. Reports/Discussion Items
 

A. Introduction from LisaRenee Keita, City of Flagstaff Human Resource Analyst; Compliance &
Training

 
  Lisa provided an introduction on her role with the City of Flagstaff, duties of her role,

including Diversity efforts.
Commissioner Pino asked about how the City keeps the trainings up to date and
relevant.
Commissioner Wegwert asked to have Lisa’s contact information sent to the
Commissioners. Staff Liaison provided the link to Lisa's contact information
online: https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/4557/HR-Team-and-Responsibilities

 

B. Regional Plan 
Jordan Hollinger - Associate Planner, Comprehensive Planning, City of Flagstaff

 
  Associate Planner Jordan Hollinger shared a presentation on the Regional Plan and

asked for CODA to participate in a SWOT analysis. Staff Liaison will send the SWOT
questionnaire to the members to complete on their own time. Jordan will return to a
future meeting for feedback and discussion. Confirm what meeting to schedule the follow
up. 
Commissioner Toner asked if the Commission Members would be interested in
scheduling a special meeting with Jordan after all members have a chance to complete
the SWOT questionnaire. Jordan stated that they would like to complete the process in
June.
Commissioner Pino left the meeting at 3:01pm.
Staff Liaison will send a Doodle poll for Special Meeting Dates and Times and include
Jordan.

 

C. Flagstaff Public Libraries Anti-racism Committee
 
  Felicia Fiedler discussed collaborating with the Diversity Commission and the



  Felicia Fiedler discussed collaborating with the Diversity Commission and the
Flagstaff Public Libraries Anti racism committee.
Felicia Fiedler provided an update on the Library Anti racism Committee.
Mandy Gebler left the meeting at 3:12pm.
The Anti racism Committee is now called the Library Equity in Action and shared goals,
accomplishments and meeting information. Asked the commission for ideas and
thoughts.
Felicia offered to attend a future meeting once the Commissioners had time to
brainstorm ideas. Requested to add this to the Future Items list. 

 

D. Transition of the Commission Leadership roles   

 
  Commissioner Toner stated that she needs to resign as Vice Chair

Dan Duke left the meeting at 3:28pm
Chair Wegwert adjourned the meeting at 3:28 PM due to a lack of quorum. 

 

E. CODA Regular Meeting   

 
  Lost quorum before this item was addressed. 
 

10. Agenda for Future Meeting(s)
 

A. Equitable Restroom Recommendation 

The item is currently in the Staff Future Agenda Items queue which means it is waiting for
some research and staff work before it moves forward again.

  

 

B. Municipal Equity Index 
The item is currently in the Staff Future Agenda Items queue which means it is waiting for
some research and staff work before it moves forward again.

  

 

C. Renaming of the Peaks Workgroup Update
Pending follow up from the High School group on when to send the Commission's
recommendation to Council. 

  

 

D. Future Priorities 
Criminal Justice conversation with Flagstaff Police Department
Conversation with Downtown Business Alliance including literature to distribute
Civil Rights

 

11. Adjournment
 
  Meeting was adjourned prior to the end of the agenda due to a lack of quorum.  

 
 

 



DRAFT MINUTES 
COMMISSION ON DIVERSITY AWARENESS
Tuesday 
June 7, 2022

  VIRTUAL TEAMS MEETING
             1:30 P.M.

 

               

1. Call to Order
 
  Chair Wegwert called the meeting to order at 1:32 PM.
 

2. Roll Call 
PRESENT ABSENT
DeAnn Wegwert, Chair Robert "Dan" Duke
Claire Hardi  
Mandy Martinez Gebler  
Marcela Pino  
Jean Toner, Vice Chair  
Christine Tucci  

Others in Attendance 

Jessica Vigorito (Staff Liaison)
Jordan Hollinger City staff Associate Planner

 

3. Mission Statement and Land Acknowledgment

 MISSION STATEMENT
  
A commission to foster support, respect, awareness and appreciation of diversity among all
citizens of Flagstaff.
  

LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
  
The Commission on Diversity Awareness humbly acknowledges the ancestral homelands of this
area’s Indigenous nations and original stewards. These lands, still inhabited by Native
descendants, border mountains sacred to Indigenous peoples. We honor them, their legacies,
their traditions, and their continued contributions. We celebrate their past, present, and future
generations who will forever know this place as home.
 

 
  The Mission Statement was read by Chair Wegwert and the Land Acknowledgment was read

by Vice Chair Toner.
 

4. Reports/Discussion Items
 

A. Regional Plan SWOT Analysis   



A. Regional Plan SWOT Analysis 

 
Review and make recommendations for the Regional Plan. 

  

 
  Regional Plan SWOT Analysis 

City staff Hollinger discussed the SWOT analysis feedback received from the
Commissioner members that were able to provide feedback and collected additional
feedback for the SWOT analysis.  The feedback was rated by the commissioners.

Commissioner Gebler left the meeting at 3:31pm.
 

5. Adjournment
 
  Chair Wegwert adjourned the meeting at 3:33 PM.
 

 



   
Commission on Diversity Awareness 8. A.        
From: Jessica Foos, Human Resources Analyst

DATE: 06/21/2022

SUBJECT: Transition of the Commission Leadership roles 

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
The Commission will discuss the appointment process, timeline, and appointment term for the
anticipated Leadership vacancy.

Executive Summary:
March 2021 Meeting Minutes Summary on the Leadership roles: 

Nominations and voting occur in the same meeting in July and terms would start in October. 
Chair and Vice Chair term of one year with the Vice Chair progressing to Chair after the one year
as Vice Chair unless the Vice Chair has termed out. 
There is no formalized position eligibility at this time.

Attachments
CODA Helpful Notes 



Commission on Diversity Awareness

∑ The CODA website is: https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/2783/Commission-on-Diversity-Awareness
which includes the meeting information, current projects and announcements, member’s names 
and the Enacting Authority. 

∑ The Boards and Commissions website is: https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/994/Boards-Commissions
which includes information on Open Meeting Law, the Rules and Operations Manual and 
Member training. 

∑ Duties of the Chair include:
o The chair is the presiding officer in all commission proceedings. During the absence of 

the chair, the vice-chair acts as chair.
∑ Important reminder:

o As a general rule, a commission may recommend to the City Council the dismissal of any 
member who is absent for more than two consecutive regular meetings without prior 
notification. This same rule applies if a member is absent for more than thirty percent 
(30%) of all meetings during a twelve-month period.

o March 2021 Meeting Minutes Summary on the Leadership roles:
ß Nominations and voting occur in the same meeting in July and terms would start 

in October. 
ß Chair and Vice Chair term of one year with the Vice Chair progressing to Chair 

after the one year as Vice Chair unless the Vice Chair has termed out. 
ß There is no formalized position eligibility at this time.
ß Leadership Team is composed of the Chair and Vice-Chair and meets with City 

Liaison prior to each monthly meeting to finalize the agenda for the upcoming 
monthly meeting.



   
Commission on Diversity Awareness 8. B.        
From: Jessica Foos, Human Resources Analyst

DATE: 06/21/2022

SUBJECT: CODA Regular Meeting 

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Protocol for exiting the meeting prior to adjourning. 
Review the results of the email survey and discuss and vote on the new CODA Regular
meeting start time, week of the month and day of the week. 
Review current Boards and Commission meeting calendar. 
Discuss transition to a hybrid format. 
Ensure all members are on board for the new meeting information and confirm
commitment to attendance.  

Executive Summary:

Previous Council Decision on This:
Transition to re-entry plan stage 4 April 11th.
All meetings need to stay hybrid in nature or virtual and must allow the public to access the meeting
via electronic means moving forward.

https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/994/Boards-Commissions


   
Commission on Diversity Awareness 10. B.        
From: Jessica Foos, Human Resources Analyst

DATE: 06/21/2022

SUBJECT: Equitable Restroom Recommendation 

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
The item is currently in the Staff Future Agenda Items queue which means it is waiting for some
research and staff work before it moves forward again.

Executive Summary:
Commission recommendations are important to the City Council and they are taken under
consideration for possible action. The City Council has several options and may: 

• Accept the recommendation and give further direction.
• Change the provisions of a recommendation before giving further direction.
• Send a matter back for further consideration.
• Not accept the recommendation.

Previous Council Decision on This:
FAIR item for September 7th Council meeting
Chair Wegwert presented the CODA recommendation to City Council on January 11, 2022. 

Attachments
Equitable Restroom Recommendation 



Recommendation to the Flagstaff City Council for a city ordinance regarding equitable 
restroom availability

The Commission on Diversity Awareness for the City of Flagstaff recommends the 
creation and passage of a city ordinance requiring that all single occupancy public 
restrooms be available for use for everyone regardless of gender. It is our 
recommendation that the ordinance include the following elements:

1. Restrooms affected by this ordinance would be those intended for use by one 
person at a time, or for family or assisted use, and located in buildings owned by 
the City of Flagstaff.

2. Signage on such restrooms would include words such as “gender neutral,” “all 
gender,” or simply the word “restroom” without reference to the gender of the 
occupant.

3. Responsibility for ensuring that signage is updated to meet these requirements 
would be determined by the City Council.

4. The ordinance would affect all existing and future single occupancy restrooms.
5. The ordinance would include an effective date determined by the City Council.

Furthermore, the Commission on Diversity Awareness requests that the Flagstaff City 
Council recommend the practice of using nongendered signage for single-occupancy 
restrooms used by the public but not owned by the city (such as restrooms in 
educational facilities, healthcare facilities, and businesses that are open to the public).

Reasons for consideration of this ordinance include:

1. Promoting the safety of gender non-conforming persons
2. Creating a welcoming environment for gender non-conforming persons
3. Increasing restroom availability for all



   
Commission on Diversity Awareness 10. C.        
From: Jessica Foos, Human Resources Analyst

DATE: 06/21/2022

SUBJECT: Municipal Equity Index 

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
The item is currently in the Staff Future Agenda Items queue which means it is waiting for some
research and staff work before it moves forward again.

Executive Summary:
The Human Rights Campaign uses the Municipal Equality Index (MEI) to examine how inclusive
municipal laws, policies, and services are of LGBTQ people who live and work in Flagstaff. Cities are
rated based on non-discrimination laws, the municipality as an employer, municipal services, law
enforcement, and the city leadership's public position on equality.
Flagstaff is one of 506 cities that have been rated on 49 different criteria. View city's scorecards

Previous Council Decision on This:
January 11, 2022 Council meeting - Chris Rhode presented the Municipal Equity Index to City
Council. 

Attachments
November 2021 MEI presentation to CODA 

https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/2850/Civil-Rights


Municipal 
Equality Index
Recommendations to improve services 

to services to LGBTQ+ community



Summary
What is the Municipal Equality Index?
• Evaluation of inclusivity of municipal laws, policies & services

• Sexual Orientation
• Gender Identity

• Published by the Human Rights Campaign
• 506 municipalities

• 11 in Arizona



Summary
Contents of Scorecard
• 100 points is max score

• Additional 22 “Flex Points”
• 5 Categories

• Non-discrimination Laws
• Municipality as Employer
• Municipal Services
• Law Enforcement
• Leadership on LGBTQ Equality



Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
Overall Score
• 88/100

• Same score since 2018
CATEGORY SCORE FLEX PTS

Non-discrimination Laws

Municipality as Employer

Municipal Services

Law Enforcement

Leadership on LGBTQ Equality

20/30 

22/28 

10/12

22/22

7/8

+0

+1

+4

N/A

+2
TOTALS 81/100 +7



Where we 
lose points

• Housing NDO
• Transgender-inclusive healthcare benefits
• Enforcement of NDO
• Leadership’s pro-equality policy efforts
• All-gender facilities
• Conversion Therapy
• Youth bullying prevention policy
• Services to unhoused LGBTQ people
• Services to LGBTQ older adults
• Services to the transgender community
• Testing limits of restrictive state law(s)



Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
Housing Non-Discrimination Laws
• Points Received: 0/10
• City NDO covers “Public Accommodations” but not “Housing”
• Only Phoenix, Tucson, Tempe received full points in AZ
• Possible preemption from adding housing to NDO (A.R.S. § 9-500.09) 

• Allows municipalities over 350k to adopt fair housing ordinance
• City stance: LGBTQ is included as federally protected class (sex)
Recommendation:
Research legality of including housing in NDO and if legal pass 
amendment to city’s NDO to include Housing

https://www.azleg.gov/viewdocument/?docName=https://www.azleg.gov/ars/9/00500-09.htm


Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
City provides Transgender-Inclusive Healthcare Benefits
• Points Received: 0/6
• Benefits set in coordination with healthcare provider
• Working with BCBS to include coverage options inclusive to 

transgender employees
Recommendation:
Continue working with provider to include transgender-inclusive 
coverage to City employees



Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
Non-Discrimination Ordinance is enforced by CODA
• Points Received: 0/2
• NDO is enforced by City Manager’s Office
• Existence of CODA satisfies separate area of scorecard

• Commissions are primarily advisory and educational
Recommendation 1:
Revise mission of the CODA to include enforcing the NDO
Recommendation 2:
Actively seek points from HRC for current procedures



Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
Leadership’s Pro-Equality Legislative or Policy Efforts
• Points Received: 2/3
• Based on policy efforts and public stances of elected officials
• Subjective criteria
Recommendation:
None



Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
Single-Occupancy All-Gender Facilities
• Points Received: 0/2
• CODA work to make city-owned facilities gender-neutral
• 2 Points for ordinance requiring all gender facilities citywide
• Gender-neutral restrooms added to 2019 update of IBC
Recommendation 1:
Adopt updated version of IBC
Recommendation 2:
Ordinance requiring gender-neutral facilities in all buildings in city



Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
City Protects Youth from Conversion Therapy
• Points Received: 0/2
• Conversion therapy not banned at State level

• No pre-emption on localities passing ban
• Pima County is only jurisdiction to ban Conversion Therapy

Recommendation:
Ordinance banning conversion therapy for individuals under the age of 18.



Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
Youth Bullying Prevention Policy for City Services
• Points Received: 0/2
• 1 point each for sexual orientation and gender identity
• Anti-bullying provisions currently done by each program

• Language likely to vary
Recommendation 1:
Collect and evaluate anti-bullying rules of individual programs
Recommendation 2:
Ordinance prohibiting bullying in its youth programs on the basis of 
sexual orientation and gender identity



Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
City Provides Services to LGBTQ People Experiencing Homelessness
• Points Received: 0/2
• Services provided through Northland Family Help Center

• 24-hour crisis line, Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault shelter
• Respectful of self-identified gender and sexual orientation
• Assigns transgender youth to rooms within self-identified gender. 
• Provides transportation for LGBTQ youth to attend the one•n•ten

Recommendation:
Document services provided by Northland Family Help Center



Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
City Provides Services to LGBTQ Older Adults
• Points Received: 0/2
• Must be programs that target LGBTQ community directly
• No city programs identified that specifically target adult 

LGBTQ community
Recommendation 1:
Evaluate non-city programs to ensure community needs being met

Recommendation 2:
Begin offering city programs for the adult LGBTQA community



Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
City Provides Services to the Transgender Community
• Points Received: 0/2
• Programs must target transgender community directly
• No city programs identified that specifically target 

transgender community
Recommendation 1:
Evaluate non-city programs to ensure community needs being met

Recommendation 2:
Begin offering city programs for the transgender community



Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
City Tests Limits of Restrictive State Law
• Points Received: 0/3
• Designed as incentive for municipalities to push back on 

state laws that hinder LGBTQ inclusivity
Recommendation:
N/A



   
Commission on Diversity Awareness 10. D.        
From: Jessica Foos, Human Resources Analyst

DATE: 06/21/2022

SUBJECT: Renaming of the Peaks Workgroup Update

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Pending follow up from the High School group on when to send the Commission's
recommendation to Council. 

Executive Summary:
Informal Working Groups
Informal working groups may be created to research, gather information, and provide
recommendations back to the commission on various matters. No official appointments are made to a
working group by the commission. Working groups may consist of members of the public and/or less
than a quorum of commission members. Unlike subcommittees, working groups are not required to
have formal agendas or minutes.
All information and recommendations from the work group must be provided and presented to the
commission in an open meeting for public discussion. Informal working groups do not have any
powers, duties, or responsibilities of the parent commission. No actions, statements, or
recommendations can be made or provided by the working group on behalf of the commission

Attachments
Dr. Silver Report 
Presentation from students 
Land Acknowledgment Recommendation 
Flagstaff Water Resources information email 























Renaming Agassiz 
Peak

By: Indigenous Youth Leaders





History of Jean Louis Rodolphe Agassiz   

- Jean Louis Rodolphe Agassiz was a Swiss- born American biologist/ 
geologist.

- Agassiz was also an opponent of miscegenation. At a lecture at the 
Charleston Literary Club in South Carolina in 1847, Agassiz 
announced that blacks constituted a separate species. In a letter to 
American abolitionist Samuel Gridley Howe in 1863, Agassiz stated 
that sexual relations between blacks and whites were “immoral” 
and “destructive to the social equality.” 

- Agassiz peak, is named after a biologist who used his studies to 
legitimize racist beliefs of white superiority. So, keeping the name the 
same deeply affects the indigenous as the meanings behind each of 
their names are important to us. This also creates a culture of racism 
colonization that should be deemed unacceptable.

https://www.britannica.com/topic/miscegenation
https://www.britannica.com/place/South-Carolina
https://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary/constituted
https://www.britannica.com/biography/Samuel-Gridley-Howe


Why is this is an important issue to indigenous people?

- The peaks is considered sacred to 13 indigenous nations which sadly, some have 
been pushed out of Arizona. 13 Tribal Nations which include; Pueblo, Mohave, 
Havasupai, Yavapai, Hualapai, Navajo, Hopi, Apache, Zuni, Salt, Gila, Paiute, 
and Ute

- The peaks still remain sacred and holy to many Indigenous nations therefore, the 
current names of the peaks is viewed as inappropriate and misrepresenting. 



Cultural significance to local Native tribes

The peaks are associated with 13 indigenous nations. The 
Peaks is associated with spiritual deities, ancestors, emergence, 
ceremonies, climate conduit, and is still integral to indigenous 
daily practices.  



Native names for Agassiz Peak 

● Dook'o'oosłííd (Navajo) (Abalone Shell Mountain) (The Mountain that reflects) 
● Pavoyoykyasi (rain tablet) Nuva'tukya'ovi —(Hopi)
● Dził Tso—Dilzhe’e—(Apache) (Big Mountain)
● Tsii Bina—Aa'ku—(Acoma)
● Nuvaxatuh—Nuwuvi—(Southern Paiute)
● Hvehasahpatch or Huassapatch—Havasu 'Baaja—(Havasupai)
● Wik'hanbaja—Hwal`bay—(Hualapai)
● Wi:mun Kwa—(Yavapai)
● Sunha K'hbchu Yalanne—A:shiwi (Zuni)
● 'Amat 'Iikwe Nyava—Hamakhav—(Mojave)
● Sierra sin Agua—(Spanish) ( The mountain without water)



Quotes from Native Elders

- “Dook’oosliid has been a part of our sacred circle of life since the beginning of life 
for the Diné people. We as Diné utilize sacred plants, water, & minerals from this 
sacred mountain. Our medicine men go to the mountains to gather ceremony 
bundles & give offerings to the Diyin Dine’e & give their offerings/ thanks for 
protectings us. The mountain have the power to cure our ailments. That’s why the 
mountain are sacred to us. We must not abuse the mountains”- Navajo Elder

- “[The peaks are one of the] sacred places where the earth brushes up against the 
unseen world,” said Yavapai-Apache Chairman Vincent Randall.

- “To us Hopis, the Peaks is a sacred home and resting place for our spiritual beings, 
kachina spirits. The kachina spirits serve as guides to the Hopi people.” - Hopi 
Elder



Press Release 



Press Release continued..



Personal Statements from Students

We will be hearing from the following students:

Mashayla Tso, Makaius Marks, Danell Lipscomb, etc. 



Closing Statement 

Agassiz’s science was used to try to legitimize racist beliefs of white racial superiority. Therefore, 
naming a peak after him is not appropriate and antagonizes the beliefs and acknowledgments of the 
indigenous nations and other communities of color. This creates a culture of Racism and 
colonization that we deem as unacceptable. 

- Keeping the name, Agassiz Peak, deeply affects Indigenous people as the cultural names 
of the peaks describe the spiritual healing and power that the mountain withholds.. This 
also creates a culture of racism and colonization that should be deemed unacceptable.





Works Cited
Fenlason, G., Fenlason, P. by G., & Fenalson, P. by G. (2016, March 25). Flagstaff's sacred mountain: the economic, political and spiritual power of the San Francisco

 Peaks. The Lumberjack. 

https://www.jackcentral.org/culture/flagstaff-s-sacred-mountain-the-economic-political-and-spiritual-power/article_e8c827f8-f06f-11e5-a4c0-83d92de048e1.html.

Heinsius, R. (2020, November 18). Earth Notes: Flagstaff To Rename Street Linked To Racist History. KNAU Arizona 

Public Radio. https://www.knau.org/post/earth-notes-flagstaff-rename-street-linked-racist-history.

Olson, K. (2020, September 24). Flagstaff High School students advocate for renaming the Peaks. Arizona Daily Sun. 

https://azdailysun.com/news/local/flagstaff-high-school-students-advocate-for-renaming-the-peaks/article_6772e469-d09b-5794-bbea-99

71d5780e1a.html.

United States Department of Agriculture- Forest Service. (n.d.). History of the San Francisco Peaks and how they 

got their names. Coconino National Forest - About the Area. 

https://www.fs.usda.gov/detail/coconino/about-forest/about-area/?cid=stelprdb5340115

https://www.jackcentral.org/culture/flagstaff-s-sacred-mountain-the-economic-political-and-spiritual-power/article_e8c827f8-f06f-11e5-a4c0-83d92de048e1.html
https://azdailysun.com/news/local/flagstaff-high-school-students-advocate-for-renaming-the-peaks/article_6772e469-d09b-5794-bbea-99
https://www.fs.usda.gov/detail/coconino/about-forest/about-area/?cid=stelprdb5340115


Land Acknowledgement Recommendation for Flagstaff City Council

By the Commission on Diversity Awareness

September 21, 2021

Out of respect for the ancestral lands occupied by multiple Indigenous tribes and with respect 

for current residents of the Flagstaff community who are tribal members and/or descendants of 

Indigenous peoples, the Commission on Diversity Awareness strongly supports the proposal 

presented to City Council to incorporate a land acknowledgement on the City website. We also 

recommend that the land acknowledgement be read at the opening of City Council meetings.



1

Jessica Vigorito

From: Jessica Vigorito
Sent: Monday, October 4, 2021 2:58 PM
To: DD; Jean Toner; J and D Wegwert; Marcela Pino; Mandy Gebler; CTucci127@gmail.com; 

hardi.claire@gmail.com
Subject: Flagstaff Water Resources information 
Attachments: IPD2021_Final.pdf

Hello All,  
 
I am passing along some Flagstaff Water Resources and Reclamation information that I have been able to find since the 
last conversation on this topic.  Attached you will find a flyer for Indigenous Peoples Day which includes a section on 
Water that I thought might be helpful to the Workgroup discussion.  I also copied links below to case studies and 
information available on the City website.  Erin Young, Water Resources Manager, did offer to attend a Commission 
meeting to present or answer questions.  
 
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/2328/Reclaimed‐Water‐Is‐It‐Safe 
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/21/Reclaimed‐Water 
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/4522/Case‐Studies 
 
To ensure compliance with the Open Meeting Law, recipients of this message should not forward it to other board 
members and board members should not reply all to this message. 
 
Jessica Vigorito, MPA 
City of Flagstaff 
Human Resources Analyst  
 
Office Phone: (928)213-2099 
Website: www.flagstaff.az.gov/humanresources   
 

 Please consider our environment before printing this e-mail  
 

 
 



   
Commission on Diversity Awareness 10. E.        
From: Jessica Foos, Human Resources Analyst

DATE: 06/21/2022

SUBJECT: Proclamations Work Group Update

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Hispanic Heritage Month October. Review draft in the September Regular meeting. 

Executive Summary:
Proclamations are made by the Mayor of Flagstaff. The Commission on Diversity Awareness is
drafting proclamations to suggest to the Mayor to further promote diversity in the City of Flagstaff. 

Attachments
June 2022 Pride Proclamation draft 



City of Flagstaff – Office of the Mayor

Proclamation
The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to enhance quality of life and preserve the values of our
community, an important part of which is embracing, respecting, and celebrating diversity; and 
We take pride in recognizing that civil rights and human rights construct a stronger foundation 
for Flagstaff as an inclusive community by promoting an environment that is welcoming and 
accepting and respectful of the dignity of all people; and

Flagstaff is committed to supporting visibility, dignity, and equality for LGBTQIA2S+ people in 
our diverse community; and

We observe Pride Month with the raising of the Rainbow Flag to honor the history of the 
LGBTQIA2S+ liberation movement and to support the rights of all citizens to experience 
equality and freedom from discrimination; and

We note with alarm that across this nation, LGBTQIA2S+ persons, especially transgender 
women of color, have been targeted by acts of violence, and state-level laws are being enacted 
denying Transgender youth, athletes' health care and basic civil human rights; and

It is essential to acknowledge that the need for education and awareness remains vital to end 
discrimination and prejudice; and

Celebrating Pride month influences awareness and provides support and advocacy for the 
Flagstaff community, and is an opportunity to take action and engage in dialogue to strengthen 
alliances, build acceptance and advance equal rights; and

Hand in hand, we commit to continuing our efforts to make Flagstaff a community inclusive of 
its lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and queer and questioning population, two spirit +; and the
Northern Arizona Pride Association is celebrating the annual “Pride Month” in June 2022, the 
goal of which is to create a consistent effort in supporting and fostering acceptance for the 
LGBTQIAS+ community and persons, and 

In partnership, the City of Flagstaff Commission on Diversity Awareness and Northern Arizona 
Pride Association recommend the designation of June 2022 as Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender 
and Queer or Questioning, Two Spirit + Month, in unison with national and statewide observances;

NOW, THEREFORE, I, PAUL DEASEY, MAYOR OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF do
hereby proclaim June 2022 as Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Queer or Questioning, 
Two Spirit + month in the City of Flagstaff in recognition of celebrating and embracing equality 
with compassion and respect.

DATED this 7th day of June 2022.

MAYOR



ATTEST:

CITY CLERK


	Agenda
	AI_6540_Approval of Minutes of May 18, 2021
	       May 17, 2022 Draft Minutes
	       June 7, 2022 Draft Minutes
	AI_65426542
	       CODA Helpful Notes 
	AI_65436543
	AI_65446544
	       Equitable Restroom Recommendation 
	AI_65456545
	       November 2021 MEI presentation to CODA
	Municipal Equality Index
	Summary
	Summary
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
	Where we �lose points
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 
	Flagstaff 2020 Scorecard 

	AI_65466546
	       Dr. Silver Report
	Robin Silver report

	       Presentation from students 
	       Land Acknowledgment Recommendation 
	       Flagstaff Water Resources information email 
	AI_6541_Proclamations Work Group Update 
	       June 2022 Pride Proclamation draft 

